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1. Name

historic Moore Square Historic District

and/or common .

2. Location

street & number See continuation sheet —__not for publication

city, town Reieigh —— vicinity of meongsvestonsrsmwer | OUTth
state  North Carolina code (37 county Wake code 183
3. Classification
c?tegory Ownership Status " Present Use .
-2 district —— public _X_ occupied — _agriculture —~ museum
" building(s) ___ private —{_ unoccupied —X— commercial I\ park
—structure  _X_both _Y_ work in progress — educational __ private residence
— site Public Acquisition Accessibie % _entertainment X veligious
—— object —— in process _X_ yes: restricted - government —— scientific
. being considered _X_ yes: unrestricted —X_ industriai — transportation
H/A ¥ no —__ military other:

4. Owner of Property

name See continuation sheet

street & number

city, town — vicinity of state

B. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Viake Coun Ty Qt:gi ster of Teeds

street & number Fayeiteville Street

city, town Releiunh | ctate N.C

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

title Portems, M. Raleigh Historical Survey bas this property been determined eligible? ____yes % _no
date —tederai ___ state county ___ local

depository for survey records Division of Archives and History, Survey and Planning Branch

city,town 109 E. Jones Street, Raleigh, state N.C. 27611




4. Description

‘Condition Check one

Check one
———excellent -+ ___ deteriorated ___ unaltered — original site
— good ——_ruins —— aitered — moved date
—_ fair — unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

Description:

The growth of the commercial district of the -city of Raleigh was confined to Fayette-
ville Street, Wilmington Street and those blocks of Hargett, Martin and Davie which
run between Fayetteville to Wilmington streets until late in the 19th century. Due
to a series of congruent pressures, population and governmental growth, development
of neighborhoods, locaticn of educational institutions, the southeast and southwest
quadrants of the ¢ity were subjected to growing commercial encroachment during and
after Reconstruction. Of those two quadrants the southeast, with Moore Square, ex-
perienced the most pressure because of existing development along the through streets.
The 1914 Sanborn maps of Raleigh show that commercialization has progressed through
to South Blount Street and along the west and south sides of Moore Square, but the
remainder of the area was still solidly residential. The meeting of a traditionally
residential fabric with commercial development in this area marks a significant per-
iod in the history of the ¢ity's growth. It vividly documents the scale and quality
of commercial development in a moderate sized southern town like Raleigh before 1920.

Although there was some further commercialization after World War | and Il, this was
controlled and defined by the existing fabric. The significant visual characteristics
of this area, therefore, are derived from late 19th and early 20th century building,
and the surviving appurtenant features such as dressed granite curbstones, and the
mature trees of Moore Square. The Moore Square district, with its small businesses,
pawnshops and restaurants echoes the past and the changing values of a growing town
and economy. At its inception it contrasted with the more florid Victorian architec~
ture of Fayetteville Street, then it has provided a strong visual contrast to the sub-

sequent and continuing development of tall office blocks and large commercial establish-
ments on Fayetteville Street.

Wiimington Street will be described first, then the one hundred blocks of Hargett,-
Davie and Martin streets and finally elements along the east boundary, North Person
Street. Not every building will be included in the description, but those which

seem representative of the best as well as the most common types of commercial archi-
tecture found in the area.

Facing each other across Wilmington Street are two and three story brick shoe-boxes.
Usually two or three bays in width, occasionally extending to a four and six bayed
block, the buildings are very deep in relation to their frontage. The usual attempts
to modernize the pedestrian level of these shops with aluminum panels and flat aluminum
awnings contribute to a discontinuity which contrasts with the frequently related re-
petitive elements and details of the second and third floors of these buildings. Above
the ''new'’ facades, one finds a well-defined string course and the large single light,
double hung sash characteristic of late 19th and early 20th century architecture of
this scale. Frequently jack or rounded arches of projecting bricks define window heads
above deep sills and jambs. A flat parapet with cccasional corbelling, decorative
panels or raised block for name and date make up the skyline. The appearance of a
projecting cornice with brackets alludes to a continuing ltalianate influence in the
usually plain commercial forms. (Site #'s 2A- B, 5, 6A- B, 13, 23).
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The two outstanding buildings on Wilmington Street, Heilig-Levine and the First Citi-
zens Bank , are symbolic of the beginning and the end of the Wilmington Street Develop-
ment. Site #26, Heilig-lLevine, on the corner of Wilmington and Hargett streets, built
ca. 1875, is an ltalianate threewstory building whose bracketed cornice and shuttered
windows remain above the altered street level facade. The interior has retained the
heavy posts down the center of the showroom which support the upper floors and the
pressed tin ceiling is an elegant reminder of hopeful fireproofing.

First Citizens, Site #58, on the corner of Wilmington and Martin streets, built in 1913
by the Commercial National Bank is a splendid example of the work of P.T. Mayre, an
Atlanta architect who did other substantial work in Raleigh. The bank is a beautifully
detailed, Gothic Revival tall office block. Although remodeled several times, it has
retained the basic features of its original decoration. The bank was one of the first
important high rise buildings in the downtown and signals the kind of commercial develop-
ment that would be associated with Fayetteville Street, just as the threeestory Heilig-
Levine Building epotomizes the scale of Wilmington Street and the Moore Square area.

As the need for commercial property grew, the downtown shops took the place of residences.
The 1914 Sanborn maps show Wilmington Street solidly filled in and a few residences

among business establishments along Martin, Davie and Hargett streets. In the 100 block
(between Wilmington and Blount) of each street there remains one, two, or three buildings
exemplary of the commercial style which was used in Raleigh. At East Hargett Street
there is a two shop block with a center entry to the spaces above. The heavy parapet,
arched windows with their distinct vouissoirs and the tall arches which emphasize the
entry allude to the popular influences on commercial building (Site #84AB). But
whether ltalinate or Renaissance Revival in origin this is not as important as the sub-
stantial image the structure creates. The interior remains much as it was, with iron
posts, pressed tin ceiling on the first floor and small offices above.

Another important Hargett Street buiiding (on the corner of Hargett and Blount streets)
is the Montague Building (Site #87). Erected in 1912, it is an impressive grey sione
office block with 6 shops on the ground floor. The original shop fronts are still in
place and above, the flat arches of the second floor and decorated arches of the third
under the flat protruding cornice and parapet with raised center block present an image
of the substantial commercial development which is representative of the aspirations

of Raleigh in 1912.
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Turning down Blount Street there were one and two-story brick commercial buildings
ending in the pleasant, equally representative building on the corner of Martin and
Blount Streets (Site #70). 1In place by 1914, this two story brick block has been
altered on the ground floor. The decorative brick course above the second story window
is exemplary of the quality of simple detail with classical recollection which is so
characteristic of the area. The large Myatt building across the street, built before
1907, shares the same attention to basic detail and scale in brick which was the com-
mercial idiom of the period (Site # 62).

The Myatt store was a major supplier of agricultural implements and materials. Livery
.stables were operated close by. This use alludes to the variety of commercial business
in the area and to the importance of the square as a market place. The area had many

other businesses like Myatt's and the square had been attracting the farming trade for.
years.

Fronting on the Square itself, along East Martin Street, is the 1914 Mission Style City
Market (Site #65). 1t is set between a plain 3 or 4-story hotel and smaller commercial
building along East Martin Street. Adjacent to these is one of the few remaining resi-
dences which was typical of the original residential fabric of the area (Site #68).

Beside it is a gas station. It is faintly reminiscent of the station style of the late
1930s and 1940s.

Davie Street, the south boundary of the district, has suffered the most from destruction
of its commercial fabric. The FCX building complex dates from the '1920s to 1930s and. is
very plain with a few pleasant touches of Art Moderne (Site #56A-E).

The most important building on the south boundary is the old Sanders Ford dealership,
(Site #23) on the corner of South Blount and East Davie Streets. A great one-story shed
with pleasant proportions, its interior is 1it with two banks of large steel casement
windows. It documents the continued growth of prosperity of the business district.
Unfortunately, it also alludes to the forces which brought that prosperity to an end.

Along Person Street little remains of the earlier or later fabric. The small Greek
Orthodox Church on the east side of Person Street and just outside the district is

testimony to the former importance of the square, as is the larger and more impressive
Tabernacle Baptist Church (Site #88A).

At the symbolic heart of the district is the green space of the square. 1t has remained
a permanent feature of the area from its beginnings. The groves of trees, of green and
flowers emphasize what is still a pedestrian scale, a scale created by the buildings

and felt in spite of the widened streets and gap sites.

The loss of importance of the area which occurred with the removal of the City Market
has had the effect of stopping time in the area. There has been more actual destruction
than irreparable "modernization'' of the buildings, but substantial pieces of the fabric
remain. As such, they document an important era in Raleigh's growth - an era of the
small businessman , the shop and the grocery store.



MOORE SQUARE DISTRICT: [NVENTORY LIST

STATEMENT OF METHODOLOGY

The proposed Moore Square District was a commercial, ethnically mixed neighborhood
wnich was created by the growth of Raleigh in the early 20th century. 1t achieved
its present significant character between ca. 1900-1930. The inventory list demo-
strates the essentially entrepreneurial, service and office character of the district.
Included in the list (in addition to site number, street address, description, cur-
rent use and designation) is the status of each site at three important dates. To
do this, three documents were used: the 1914 Sanborn map because it is the only one
to be found for this period, and the 1925 and 1935 city directory listing for each
site. Nineteen twenty-five represents the district in its prime and 1935, which

is the date of the creation of (black) Richard B. Harrison Library recognized the
apogee of the socially significant Black Main Street. Comparisons between these

city directory listings shows no significant departure from the profile of use and
occupancy shown in the listed data.

The categories for designation are:

P Pivotal

- buildings of historical and architectural importance
whose presences are essential to the character of
the historic district.

(]
1l

Contributing - buildings that exhibit architectural styles and
qualities of scale, materia! and placement that
define the overall character of the district.

NC

Non-Contributing ~ buildings that have either been subject to un-
sympathetic major alterations or that are other-
wise out of character with the historic district.

The sites are numbered in the following manner:

#1-27 - Wilmington Street, east-side
#28-32 - Wiimington Street, west-side
#33-40 - Blount Street, east-side
#41-48 - Blount Street, west-side
#49-53 - Blake Street, east-side

#54 - Blake Street, west-side
#55-56E - Davie Street, north-side

#57 - Parham Street

#58-69 - Martin Street, south-side
#70-77 - Martin Street, north-side
#78-87 - Hargett Street, south-side
#88-95 - Hargett Street, north-side
#96-99 - Morgan Street, south-side
#100 - Moore Square

#101-102 - Wilmington Street, northwest corner
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8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below X y

___prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric _=__ community planning ____ landscape architecture ___religion

—— 1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic . conservation — law —__science

— 1500-1599 & _ agriculture —___economics —literature - sculpture

—1600-1699 ____ architecture - education —— military ——_ social/

—1700-1799 _art — engineering —— music humanitarian

—X.1800-1898 __ X commerce — exploration/settlement ___ philosophy — theater

—X- 1900~ - communications — industry — politics/government ___ transportation
___invention —X_ other (specify)

Black History
Specific dates Various Builder/Architect Various

Statement of Significance {in one paragraph)
Moore Square District:

The district being nominated as the Moore Square Historic District is significant for
aspects of the history of the development of the city that are preserved in the fabric
and plan of the area.

Moore Square itself is one of only two surviving one-acre public parks platted in the
original 18th century town plan. Once the center of residential development, the
area around the park was replaced by commercial fabric in the boom years following
Reconstruction. Its importance as a locus of agricultural trade was recognized when
the new City Market was opened there in 1914. Because of its proximity to the pre-
dominantly black neighborhoods in South Raleigh, Esst Hargett Street between Wilming-
ton Street and Blount Street became the site of the Black Main Street of Raleigh,

an important sociological phenomenon that has been wideiy dccumented. The commercial
district as a whole flourished until the removal of the City Market and the general
decline in importance of downtown commercial areas that came with urban out-migration
in the past twenty-five years. The atmosphere and architectural fabric, therefore,
preserve and document forces that have helped shape the history of the growth of the
city: pPost Reconstruction commercial growth and Zevelopment, racial segregation and
urban out-migration.

Criteria Assessment:

The quality of significance in American history, architecture and culture is present

in the buildings, location, setting, feeling and association of the proposed Moore
Square District; and

A. The proposed Moore Square district is associated with events--the original
city plan, the boom years of the post-Reconstruction era, and racial segregation
that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of cur culture;

B. The proposed Moore Square district is associated with the lives of persons signi-
ficant in the history of biack culture in Raleigh and the region;

C. The proposed Moore Square district embodies the distinctive characteristics of
a type - commercial develcpment, period - late 19th, early 20th century, and
method of construction =- plain masonry, frame and steel frame construction -

and represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may
lack individual distinction.
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Historic Significance:

Moore Square is one of only two surviving four-acre public parks platted in the ori-
ginal plan of the City of Raleigh; as such it is an important ar ifact of 18th

century American town planning. Originally, Moore Square was the locus of a 19th cen-
tury residential neighborhood. However, as the downtown commercial district grew, the
residential aspect was replaced by late 19th, early 20th century commercial development.
In this form the district became a focus for agricultural marketing and associated
trades. The area also was the site of the Black Main Street of Raleigh during the first
five decades of the 20th century. Consequently, the surviving architectural fabric of
the Moore Square district documents forces that helped shape the history of the city:
commercial development, urban out-migration, and racial segregation. The following dis-
cussion will briefly outline the impact of these events on the proposed Moore Square

Historic District, bounded by Wilmington Street, the Capital Historic District, Person
Street and East Davie Street (see map).

in 1792, state commissioners bought one thousand acres of land in Wake County for the
purpose of establishing a capital that would be central to the state. William Christmas,
a surveyor from Warrenton, N.C., was employed to plat the acreage for what was to be the
nation's first planned state capital. Using-a traditional gridiron pattern in his de-
sign, Christmas reserved a six-acre central square as a site for the Capitol and four=-:
acre lots, equi-distant from the Capitol grounds in each quadrant of the city, for public

use .1 The large square was designated as Union Square and the smaller plcts were named
Burke, Caswell, Nash and Moore quares in honor of the Tirst three governors after In-
dependence — Thomas Burke, Richard Caswell, and Abner Nash, and the state's first At-

torney General, Alfred E. Moore.2

During the antebellum . period Raleigh grew slowly. Its population in 1850 numbered only
L 518. Physically, the major focus of the town was the Capitol at the north end of
Fayetteville Street and the Governor's Palace at the south end. The Wake County Court-
house was also on Fayetteviile Street so that this thoroughfare, which was also an im-
portant access road to towns south of the city, developed as the commercial street of
Raleigh. Residential development took place simultaneously in all four quadrants
around the open squares. Because of the location of Fayetteville Street, however, the
areas east and west of the street were the first to feel the pressure of commercial
development.3 The City Market was only one block west of Moore Square in the center of
Hargett Street, until it was relocated to the market plaza between Fayetteville and
Wilmington Streets in 1840. Both Hargett and Wilmington streets became notorious for
their grog shops and saloons and soon were known as ''Grog Aliey'' and ‘''Cologne'' respect-
ively. According to Moses Amis, an early historian of the city, the area retained its

notoriety into the 20th century but by 1913 had been reclaimed as a respectable business
district.
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The bustle of the city's small commercial district had little effect on the immediate
area around Moore Square before the Civil War. |In fact, the city's residents utilized
the square much in the manner of a village common and it became a temporary site for
the Baptists (1812), the Episcopalians (1826) and the Eastern Ward School (1842).

A small congregation of Baptists worshipped on the square until the outbreak of the
Civil War, and later sold their wooden church to Negroes who moved the building to a
southein suburb of Raleigh known as Hayti. Raleigh's citizens became so accustomed to
the denomination's presence at the park that it became known as the ''Baptist Grove.'
Due to the slow growth of antebellum Raleigh, the state did not utilize the planned
squares until 1840. Caswell became the site for a School for the Deaf, Dumb and Blind
completed in 1849; Nash remains open today, but was used temporarily as a site for a
girl's school in 1858; and Burke was occupied by the Raleigh Academy, a private school
for boys established in 1801, which became the site for the present Governor's Mansion

in 1883.5

During the Union occupation of Raleigh following the Civil War, a contingent of black
troops were billeted on Moore Square as late as 1871. After their departure it became
apparent that trees needed toc be replanted and the park grounds beautified. To effect
these improvements, the Legislature empowered the city to utilize and to ornament the
park land in 1871. This was an important legislative order because five years later
when the building committee for new Governor's Mansion wanted to sell the property to
defray expenses for the building's construction, the city was able to challenge their
plan and to block the sale through a court order. The state Legislature subsequently
ended the dispute with the passage of a bill preventing the sale of Moore Square and
entrusting the responsibility for the park's maintenance with the city.”

By the 1870s the Moore Square district had developed into an area of critical interface
between the growing commercialization of the central core of the city and the tradition
of the downtown neighborhood. There was already significant commercial spread along
Wilmington and Hargett streets in the form of saloons, restaurants, groceries, black-
smiths, bootmakers, and boarding houses. As the decade progressed cotton commission
merchants, grocers, and artisans located stores and shops along Martin and Davie Streets,
adding to the further encroachment of business in the district. Indicative of the
economic upsurge in the Moore Square area during the later quarter of the nineteenth cen-
tury and the eventual dominance of business interests in the district was the constructicn
of the Carolina Boarding House in 1870. The fashionable three-story ltalianate building
was converted into a hotel in 1880, and remained a popular establishment until the

1890 s. In 1899 the hotel proprietors sold the structure, and new owners reopened it as
a furniture store before the building changed hands again in 1907. For the next twenty
eight years two subsequent proprietors operated a grocery store in the building. After
its sale in 1935 to W.A. Heilig and Albert L. Levine, the building opened again as a
furniture store, which it has remained until the present day 9 (Site #21).
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Another important public structure built in the district in 1879 reflected the desire
on the part of some Raleigh citizens to keep the immediate area around Moore Square
residential. A Baptist congregation built the Tabernacle Baptist Church on the corner
of Person and Hargett streets, affirming their commitment to the neighborhood. The
original structure was a modest brick Gothic Revival structure, but it has since under~
gone two major renovations. In 1891, Adolphus G. Bauer, a popular and well-known
architect of the city who is today best remembered for his exuberant designs for public
buildings, such as the Governor's Mansion in Raleigh and the School for the Deaf and
Dumb in Morganton, converted the simple church into a heavy Romanesque Revival style
building.|0 in 1909 the building was altered to a Gothic form by local architect,

James Matthew Kennedy, noted for his design of the Murphy School on Person Street and
the City Market (Site #65), both of which are located in Raleigh.l!

Another apparent retardant to the overflow of business into the immediate environs of
the park was the city's use of Moore Square. Trees were planted and the lot graded and
beautified, so that by the 1890'S, the square had become one of the city's most popular
parks for afternoon and evening strolls.!'2 The area continued to be enjoyed as a re-
creational area well into the 20th- century. In 1907, the News and Observer (Ral-
eigh) aptly described Moore and Nash Squares, the only remaining open parks, as the

city's ‘'lungs," emphasizing the vital function the parks performed.
Moore Square in the following manner:

The report described -

It is as well kept as it is possible for a park to be when it is given
freely to the use of the people. Its shade trees in the spring and

summer shelter children by day and the worn out of the day's tcil and
lover's by night.]3

Others, however, did not see any merit in the unornamented .appearance of the square.
Charles M. Robinson, a landscape architect commissioned by the Women's Club of Raleigh in
1913 to evaluate the city's resources and to suggest a future plan for its development,
thought the park needed to be more functional and suggested the city p]aCﬁ public toilets
in the square and conceal them with a bandstand or decorative pIantings.]

During the opening decades of the - 20fhHi century, the Moore Square district began a
significant transformation. Several factors provided impetus for this development. First,
Raleigh's population doubled and the city's corporate limits were extended to cover seven
and a half square miles between 1900 and 1920. In response to favorable conditicns for
economic growth, entrepreneurs opened new stores and the city experienced a wide-spread
diversification of its commercial enterprise.ls The Moore Square neighborhood, situated
on the fringe of Raleigh's commercial district, was soon commercialized and by 1940 the
district was an integral part of the business core of the city. An excellent illustration
of the spread of commercialization during the early . ... . 20th: century into the Moore
Square district was the development of the 100 block of Martin Street. Before the turn

of the century, the street's businesses clustered near Wilmington Street and little com-
mercial diversification was present. Occupants of Martin Street were mainly commission
merchants and grocers in this era. However, the character of the street changed markedly,
and by 1920, only one commission merchant remained on Martin Street, which now reflected

a wide range of business operations such as candy, furniture, drug, and shoe stores as
well as chemical, battery, feed, and agricultural implement <:ompanies.]6
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Secondly, additional incentive for rapid business expansion came in 1910 when state
legislators discussed the possibility of moving the State capital to Greensboro, which
could accommodate large political gatherings. City officials in Raleigh quickly res-
ponded to the threat by developing hotel and auditorium facilities and encouraging the

growth of business, especially industry.!7 In the wake of these developments. several
large buildings, the Commercial National Bank (1912), (#58), the Montague Building

(1912), (#87) and the City Market (1914) (#65) were constructed.

Symbolic of the municipal effort to bring the aura of a large metropolitan center to
Raleigh was its importation of the architectural style of southern urban centers. The
city commissioned P. Thornton Mayre, a prominent architect from Atlanta, to design a

City Auditorium and Municipal Building (1911), and the Commercial National Bank requested
that the architect design a five-story office building on the corner of Wilmington and
Martin streets. The resulting structure was an imposing multi-storied Gothic brick
bank-house which helped nuture the growth of business in the Moore Square district.!

Another important building erected in the area in 1912, which was not successful due to
the growth of the pclicy of segregation, was the Montague Building located on the corner
of Hargett and Blount streets. After enjoying a brief period of prosperity, the office
buildin? has either been a temporary site for federal government offices or remained
vacant.!9 The development of Hargett Street into the ''Negro Main Street' in the 1920s
ended any pians for the structure being a profitable white commercial building because
the realty company that rented the building stubborniy refused to allow blacks to oc-
cupy any of its offices, even though the structure was located in the heart of the Negro
business district. Raleigh Negroes have long held the belief that Benjamin F. Montague,
a wealthy lawyer and the original owner of the building, forbid occupancy through a
restrictive clause in his will. Although no such restriction existed, it seems the

rumor wga pervasive enough to allow the reaity company's rental policy to go unchal-
lenged.

A thiid commercial structure built in the Moore Square area during the burst of downtown
expansion in the second decade of the 20th century was the City Market, designed by
James M. Kennedy and completed in 1914, The Spanish Mission style market place located
on East Martin Street sits diagonally across the square from the architect's earlier
work, the remodeled Tabernacle Baptist Church. The market's popularity increased
steadily through the 20th century due to the development of the trucking industry. By
1550 over two-thirds of Raleigh's families visited the facility, and over four and one-

half million dollars worth of the §¥ate's produce, meat, and dairy products were bought,
sold, and shipped from its stalls.

The City Market helped complete the commercial metamorphosis of the district. By 1948,
the Moore Square area had fourteen grocery stores alone feeding off the vg}gme ofdtr?qe
produced by the market.22 Another development that contributed to.a significant decline
in the number of residences bordering the square was the construction of the Hugh Morson
High School on the block bounded by South Person, South Blooderth, gast Mgrgan, and
East Hargett streets in 1924. The three-story red brick building trlmmed in san@stone
was designed by C. Gasden Sayre, a Greensboro architect noted for his school designs,
and occupied this block until the building was razed in the 1960s.23 By the 1?405,.the
City Market was at the height of its popularity and only a few residences remained in-
terspersed between the commercial and public building around the square.

Even though
(32)
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the district was heavily congested, lacked adequate parking or rail facilities, and
imposed extensive handling costs, the market area was a popular and significant trading
center due to Moore Square's historic interest and its use as a park and playground.2

The inevitable pressures of the state's agricultural growth led to the construction of
a large modern farmer's market in North Raleigh during 1950 to accommodate wholesale
produce purchasing, which reduced the City Market's trade volume drastically. At the
same time, the proliferation of chain grocery stores in the city's growing suburbs in-
creased competition and further reduced business. The city decided to sell the City

Market at auction. After the sale the building reopened almost immediately under prij-
vate ownership and has remained a private commercial property until the present day.

Another important factor which contributed to the economic vitality of the Moore Square
district during the first half of the 20th century was the development of Hargett Street
into the site of the Black Main Street of Raleigh. In the decades following the Civil
War. the majority of Raleigh's Negro population chose to settle into the southeastern
quadrant of the city. However, after the turn of the century the increased stringency

of segregationist policies began to restrict the geographic mobility of the city's

black residents to this area. Raleigh's Negroes were not entirely encircled since major
black residential areas had been established on the outer environs of the city's west-
ern suburbs during the Reconstruction Era along Oberlin and Method roads; and in some
areas of the city, especial\g the northwestern sector, black and white families continued
to live on the same blocks.2® However, the black family's opportunities for moving to a
large northern and western subdivisions created after 1906, such as Boylan Heights, Cameron
Park and Glenwood; were nonexistent because white realtors imposed a_restrictive clause
in the deeds for neighborhood lots that forbid black homeownership.2

Lines of segregation also developed in the commercial district of Raleigh in the early
20th century. This phenomenon has been documented in Wilmoth A. Carter's The Urban
Negro in the South, which utilized Hargett Street as a case study for a sociological in-
vestigation of a Black Main Street. The book traces the development of segregation in
the business district of Raleigh and found that blacks were slowly displaced from bus-
iness locations on or near Fayetteville and Wilmington streets after 1900, so that by
1920 the 100 block of East Hargett, the only street which welcomed black business, had
supplanted South Wilmington Street as the Negro business district, and by the late 1920s
it had become ''the hub of the black community."?2

An indication of the spirit and the significance of East Hargett Street to the Negro
community and to the city's economy in the 1920 = can be surmised from a news report
describing Negro business in the Raleigh Times published in November, 1925:

Raleigh has the best hotel, the Arcade, for Negroes in the State and one of
the best in the South. There are in this city thirty seven grocery stores
owned by Negroes some of which are well managed and carry complete lines of
groceries. The Fidelity Clothing Company is a recently organized cooperative
enterprise with a branch at Wilson Mills. The Ogden Printing Company does

a statewide business. The Farmers and Mechanics Bank located practically in
the heart of the business district established in 1923 has made possible the
pooling of Negro resources, the financing of business on a larger scale. The
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Progressive Real Estate Company is the chief agency for realty transfers and
building...In Insurance, in addition to that of the fraternal orders, which
is considerable, the National Benefit Company, the Standard Life insurance
Company, the North Carolina Mutual, meet the needs of the Negro...There are
five Negro drug stores, three garages, and one foundry, but no factories.
Raleigh anyway is not destined to be a factory town we are told. Whatever
the Raleigh of tomorrow may be the Negroes will play a part in its making.29

A1l of the major businesses mentioned in the article were located along Hargett Street,
including the fashionable "Arcade,'" which was a three-story Negro hotel and professional
building constructed in 1918 and owned by C.E. Lightner, a black contractor and funeral
director. Lightner is often credited for the success of thearea since his structure
provided a nucleus for the development of the Negro business district.30

By the end of the 1920s, East Hargett had become astable white collar Negro business
district that was hardy enough to survive the economic hardship of the Great Depression.
Many black professionals remained solvent through the Depression and when the economy
went back on the upswing in Raleigh after 1935, prosperity returned tc the bank, fun-
eral parlors, doctors, lawyers, dentists, cafes, real estate offices and drug stores.
These businesses were soon joined by a burial association, a dressmaker an ambulance
service, and a public ltibrary. Over the ensuing decades the street changed little in

its character and remained a vibrant Negro business district until the 19603. when de-
segregation and the growth of suburban black businesses drew off customers and capital
and caused the rapid decline of the area.3!
The appearance of the Richard B. Harrison public library on East Hargett Street was es-
pecially significant since it became a repository for Afro-American history and culture.
The library was located in the renrovated office building of Dr. L.T. Delaney, the assist-
ant chief surgeon of St. Agnes Hospital at St. Augustine's College in Raleigh, and opened
for use on November 12, 1935.32 Through the 1930's and the 1940's, the Harrison library
became a cultural forum that especially promoted Negro literature and music. Featured
speakers from the North included W.C. Handy, ''the father of the blues,' Arna Bontemps.

author of the popular works, Black Thunder (19%6) and Drums at Dusk (1939), and W.E.B.
DuBois, historian, editor and soctal activist. 3

In the brief overview of the history of Moore Square, four themes have emerged which
highlight its significance to the social and urban fabric of North Carolina's capital.
First, the open space of the park is an important vestige of the city's original

18th century plan and continues to be an important recreational facility. Second,
the process of the square's transformation from a2 downtown neighborhood to a commercial
zone, as depicted by the architectural landmarks of the district, illustrates key phases
in Raleigh's urban development. Third, the square provided the state with a vital
agricultural trading center and contributed to the city's economic growth.
Moore Square district was the locus of nearly all black business and professional services
during the first half of the 20th century. Today, littered streets, broken windowpanes
and boarded store entrances belie the historical significance of the area and destroy
the scenic beauty of the old park. However, the potential of the Moore Square district
well worth redemption and can only help breathe new life into the urban core of Raleigh.

Finally, the

is
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BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION: PROPOSED MOORE SQUARE HISTORIC DISTRICT

The boundaries of the proposed Moore Square District begin at the northeast corner of
East Davie and Wilmington streets, running east along the north side of Davie Street

at the curb stones to the back lot line of address number 335 Blake Street, turning
north at the back lot line and running north along the back lot lines of address numbers
333, 325, 323, 311, 309, and 305 Blake Street and turning east along the back lot line
of numbers 22L and 228 East Martin Street to the corner at South Person Street. The
boundary continues north on the west side of South Person Street, including the original
granite curb stones of Moore Square, north across East Hargett Street to the back lot
line of the property of Tabernacle Baptist Church, where it turns west along that lot
Tine until it comes to the corner of the back lot line of address number 105 and 103
South Blount, until it abuts the Capital Area Historic District and runs west along

that district line on the south side of East Morgan Street to the corner of East

Morgan Street and South Wilmington Street. At this corner the boundary turns south
along the east side of Wilmington Street for a short distance before turning west
crossing South Wilmington Street to include address numbers 106 and 108. The boundary
turns east back across Wilmington Street and turns south along the east side of Wil-
mington Street to the corner of Wilmington and Hargett Streets, where it turns west along
the south curb line of East Hargett to include address numbers 8, 12, 14, 16, :and 18
East Hargett Street. The boundary then turns south along the west lot line of number 8
East Hargett Street and proceeds south along the back lot line of number 12 East Hargett
to join with the back lot lines of address numbers 210, 214, 218, and 220 South Wil-
mington Street, turning east to exciude the back of the Wachovia Building and Market

and Exchange Plazas, then back west and south to include address numbers 13, 15, 17,

and 19 East Martin Street and First Citizens Bank on the south west corner of East
Martin and South Wilmington Streets. From the back lot iine of the First Citizens

Bank the lines runs east to the east curb line of South Wilmington Street then south

to the north east corner of East Davie and Wilmington streets which is the beginning
point.

MOORE SQUARE: BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The boundaries were determined by contiguous surviving fabric within the district which
includes the Black Main Street, the Wilmington Street commercial area and the related
agricultural service, wholesale and retail shops around the City Market.

The south and east boundaries were determined by the absence of an historical fabric

on the opposite sides of the street. The west boundary, which includes portions of

both sides of Wilmington Street and contiguous extensions of fabric on Hargett and
Martin Streets, was drawn to include those sections on the west side of Wilmington
Street which have buildings contemporary with the district. Fayetteville Street, the
main shopping street- Was not included because the use, development and character of the
street is markedly different from the proposed district. The north boundary was de-
termined by a congruent boundary with a portion of the Capital Area Historic District,

and by major parking lots and gap sites which were avoided in the final portion of this
boundary.
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property 29,12
Quadrangle name Raleigh West Quadrangle scale _1:24000
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Verbal boundary description and justification

See continuation sheet
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
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state code county code
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organization City of Raleigh date September 1980 - September 1982
street & number P.0. Box 590 ‘ telephone 755-6750
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12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification
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665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register fy thdy/it has been evaluated
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State Historic Preservation Officer signature
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